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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: Reportedly constructed between 1854 and 1867, this building does not appear on the 1869 Bird’s Eye Map. The Geneva History Museum dates it to around 1890. 

The east, north, and south walls are made of locally quarried limestone, while the front is constructed of brick, suggesting possible later remodeling, although it was also common practice to utilize more "stylish" on the front facade when building. 

The building has been used for both residential and commercial purposes. In Sanborn maps, it is labeled as a dwelling through 1930, and in 1945, it is labeled "F" for "flat" or apartment. The second floor was home to Benjamin Boyes, the last surviving member of the Disciples of Christ Church in Geneva. Boyes was a shoemaker originally born in England. He built a general store and residence in 1863 and occupied the business until 1880. Joseph Bell took over the store from then until 1894, when Robert Long remade the store into a dwelling and the Boyes family returned to using the full building. Boyles died in 1903. 

In 1912, the building itself was labeled in Sanborn Fire Insurance maps as the Christian Scientist Church with a dwelling on the second floor. The church was active at the site from at least 1911 to 1918. 

From 1920 to 1943, the property was owned by Egisto “Tony” Lencioni and was known as the Italian Immigrant House. Lencioni and his family were the first Italians in the town and he guided Italians seeking residence in Geneva through the process and acted as a translator for them.Lencioni also ran a lunch counter and confectionary from the Albertson building on State Street. The September 3, 1926 issue of the Geneva Republican says, "Lencioni has ruined his splendid garden by building a cement basement at the rear of his residence on South Second street for a four-car garage." The July 23, 1948 Geneva Republican issue further describes his involvement in town.

The Geneva History Museum also holds an image of 9 S. Second when it operated as a shoe repair shop.

	SOURCES: GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869 Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land Records; Geneva, Illinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, Illinois: 150 Reminders of 150 Years
	AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
	AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
	GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
	LEFT STREET VIEW: 
	RIGHT STREET VIEW: 
	STREET VIEW: 
	ACCESSORY 1: 
	REAR CORNER/ ACCESSORY: 
	CORNER STREET/ ACCESSORY: 
	ACCESSORY 2: 
	ACCESSORY 3: 
	LANDSCAPE 1: 
	LANDSCAPE 2: 
	PROPERTY ADDRESS: 11-13 South Second Street
	SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1999
	ARCHITECT: Unknown
	DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1890
	COMMON NAME: Unknown
	GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: Unknown
	ARCHITECTURAL DATA: Two-Part Commercial Block, Italianate
	OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Complex, Back Facing Rectangle, Commercial 
	NUMBER OF STORIES: 2
	FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Not Visible
	PRIMARY WALL MATERIALS: Brick, River Stone
	FRONT PORCH: Entry 
	VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A 
	ENTRY DOORS: Non Historic, Non Original 
	WINDOW MATERIAL: Wood
	WINDOW STYLE: Picture; Double Hung, 1/1 
	PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Flat 
	PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Asphalt 
	VISIBLE CHIMNEY: No
	CHIMNEY MATERIAL: N/A 
	OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES: 
	PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER PIN: 12-03-476-010 
	BUILDER: Unknown
	WILSON BROTHERS: Off


